


































   
November 5, 2010 
 
Historic Resources Commissioners 
City of Lawrence, Kansas 
 
 
Re:  Proposed 1043 Indiana Street Demolition and New Construction DR-08-91-10. 
 
 
As an architect practicing in Lawrence, I’m writing to provide additional information regarding 
the proposed demolition of the William Christian Hoad Residence (1043 Indiana Street) and 
construction of a new multi-dwelling project on the property.  The following is divided between 
the two different components of the request, demolition and new construction. 
 
 
DEMOLITION 
 
Environs of Oread Historic District 
The applicant for the project indicates “There isn’t any historic structures within a line of sight due 
to the existing topography of the area”.  According to the “Standards and Guidelines of 
Evaluating the Effect of Projects on Environs”, this is not the criterion for evaluating the effect of 
the project on the historic property.  The Standards state that “The character of a historic 
property’s environs should be retained and preserved.  The removal or alteration of distinctive 
buildings, structures, landscape features, spatial relationships, etc. that characterize the environs 
should be avoided.”   This certainly is a distinctive building that has a significant spatial 
relationship characterizing the environs of the Historic District.  As you travel west on Eleventh 
Street from the historic district you crest over Mt. Oread and the first visible building is the Hoad 
Residence; from the high point both the historic district and the Hoad Residence are visible.  The 
last house you see in the Historic District is a Dutch Colonial Style, and the first house you see over 
the hill, the Hoad Residence, is also a Dutch Colonial Style.  Demolition of the Hoad Residence 
would have a detrimental affect on the character of the environs of the Oread Historic District. 
 
Historical Significance of the Hoad Residence 
The Hoad Residence has been determined to be historically significant in its own right and has 
been determined by the Kansas State Historical Society as eligible to be listed on the State and 
National Registers of Historic Places.  I have previously provided historical information about the 
house and the individuals associated with its construction including William Christian Hoad 
(Owner), Harriet Tanner (Developer), and John Constant (Contractor). 
 
Condition of House 
The applicant states that the Hoad Residence is in terrible condition and supports this with their 
own inspection report and by a hired structural consultant’s report.  Having been involved in 
hundreds of residential rehabilitation projects and dozens of historic preservation projects, and 
having toured through the house, I can state that this representation is patently false.  The only 
significant structural issue with the house is that the foundation of the west addition (circa 1918) 
has experienced differential settlement from the original 1908 portion of the house.  The majority 



of work required is with mechanical systems, thermal upgrading (storm windows and insulation), 
and finishes.  The work on the house should be approached as a “restoration”, maintaining as 
much of the original building fabric as possible.  The applicant suggests that complete removal 
of interior and exterior finishes is necessary; this is not an accurate statement and is not the 
proper method of approach for a restoration project. 
 
Cost of Restoration 
The applicant estimates a cost of $233/s.f. (without parking) for “renovation” of the house, 
stating that this figure is “based on previous five renovations”; there is no substantial support for 
this cost estimation.  Based on detailed cost estimation spreadsheets we’ve completed for other 
historic preservation projects, I believe restoration of the house can be completed for around 
$165/s.f.  Utilizing 25% State and 20% Federal preservation tax credits, available for restoration of 
historic listed properties, the net cost would be approximately $91/s.f., which is the same amount 
as the applicant’s projected cost for the new construction. 
 
NEW CONSTRUCTION 
 
Owners of property 
The proposed project encompasses six 50’x117’ lots, three of which are owned by Triple T LLC 
(the applicant) and three of which are owned by the University of Kansas.  According to the City 
Development Code, plan reviews can be initiated by “the Owner of the property that is the 
subject of the application”, or “the Landowners’ authorized Agent”.  Both owners of the 
property, or their authorized agent, must jointly initiate the plan review by the HRC; the University 
of Kansas must acknowledge their agreement with the application before it can be acted on 
by the HRC. 
 
Zoning of property 
Currently the subject property is zoned “U”.  It is anticipated the Owner will apply for rezoning to 
an RM-32 designation, the same as the surrounding properties, but that process has not been 
completed, and it’s possible that another zoning designation could be sought.  Before the HRC 
can effectively evaluate the proposed project the rezoning process needs to be complete. 
 
Zoning Variances for proposed design 
If the property is rezoned to an RM-32 designation, there are two major items of the proposed 
design which do not meet the regulations of that district.  First, the allowable density in RM-32 is 
32 units per acre; the proposed development is for 82 units on .80 acres, which is equivalent to 
102 units per acre, three times more than allowed. Second, the allowable height in RM-32 is 45’ 
and the height of the proposed development varies from 54’ to 75’ above the adjacent grade. 
 
Both of these items would require a variance from the Board of Zoning Appeals and potential 
approval of these is uncertain.  The HRC can not conduct an appropriate review of the 
submitted design, because it is unknown whether this is a feasible design alternative.   
 
No action should be taken by the HRC before the property is rezoned and no action should be 
taken before the necessary zoning variances are approved.  
 
“Feasible and prudent alternative”  
As you know, if the HRC acts on the application and denies the demolition and new 
construction, the applicant can appeal the decision to the City Commission.  At that stage the 
review essentially changes to be whether there are “feasible and prudent alternatives” to the 
proposed design.  Since the proposed development is wildly in excess of the allowable density, it 
becomes impossible to demonstrate a feasible alternative which meets the zoning regulations 



and provides an equivalent economic return.  The HRC should defer action on this item until a 
“feasible” design is submitted by the applicant. 
  
 
Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions regarding the above information. 
 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Stan Hernly 
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